
 

December 2025 Page 1 of 3 
 

  
Board of Directors’ Reports 

Ray Yuenger, D21 Secretary  

December 2025  

Contact Ray:  rayyuenger@gmail.com  

Draft Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board 

of Directors of District 21 on November 18, 2025 

Announcing a change in procedure. As Secretary of District 21 (“D21”), I’ve been 
essentially keeping two sets of books. I prepare the formal minutes of the meetings 
of the Board of Directors for D21 usually at least two weeks in advance of the 
next scheduled Board meeting for the Board’s review, correction, and approval. 
There are usually four Board meetings a year, the Annual Meeting in late January 
or early February after the Monterey regional, a meeting in June after the 
Sacramento regional, a meeting in September after the Santa Clara regional, and 
a special meeting in November focused on the next year’s budget. 

I’ve also been summarizing these same four Board meetings for this Diamond in the Ruff (“DIR”) newsletter.  
The DIR is published every two months, in February, April, June, August, October, and December. With four 
Board meetings to report in six issues, obviously there isn’t a Board summary every edition of the DIR. 

Board minutes are more formal than the newsletter summaries, as they include which Board members 
attended and the exact wording of motions that passed and failed. 

However, circumstances forced my last newsletter summary to be the same document as the draft minutes 
to be distributed to the Board. Due to overlapping schedules, the October summary was due about two 
weeks before draft minutes were due, and I had a vacation planned for most of those two weeks. 

Having adopted that procedure once has made me question keeping two sets of books. I’ve essentially 
been writing two reports on the same meeting and same Board decisions, sometimes listening twice to the 
video-recordings of two-hour meetings. With this article, I’ve decided to simplify my life and compose the 
draft minutes once. Those who don’t want to read the attendance report can simply skip the roll call 
section. I label sections so readers can either skip them or skip to them as their interests dictate. 

1.  Call to order. President Jim Coke called the virtual meeting to order on November 18, 2025 at 6:35 
PM. 

2.  Roll call. Secretary Ray Yuenger called the roll.  In attendance were the following directors (and 
alternates) from their Units:  473, Donna Neff; 498, Lauren Rosen; 499, Anne Hollingsworth, Jackie Zayac; 
501, Art Mirin; 502, Tom Pajak; 503, Max Schireson (late); 505, Jim Coke; 506, Gail Gabiati; 507, Lynn 
Bartz, Ray Yuenger; 509, Jackie Ortiz; 510, Mary Sievers; 512, Sigrid Price; 522, Anthony Toto; 524, 
James Craig; 530, Trulee Ricketts; and 550, Janet Tainty.   

Also in attendance were Anne Wilson, Brenda Hatton, Vice-President Stu Goodgold, Jeffrey Hack, Lynn 
Yokel, Bruce Blakely, and Milind Girkar. 

3.  Minutes. The minutes of the regular Board meeting on September 16, 2025 (erroneously identified in 
the agenda as September 11, 2024) were approved as circulated. 

4.  Reports of Officers and Committee Chairs. Because it was a special meeting, there were no reports 
by Officers and Committee Chairs except the following. 

5.  D21 Officer candidates. Election Committee Chair Jackie Ortiz announced that each of the current 
officeholders, President Jim Coke, Vice-President Stu Goodgold, Treasurer Lynn Bartz, Secretary Ray 
Yuenger, and Executive Committee Officer Anne Hollingsworth is interested in continuing in their positions in 



 

December 2025 Page 2 of 3 
 

2026. Jackie asked to submit other nominations to her. Jackie also asked Units to cast their votes for Area 
Directors in the ongoing elections. 

6.  Financial report. Treasurer Lynn Bartz invited questions about the three documents she had circulated 
and said she had no presentation to make. She was aware that Stu Goodgold had some questions about 
the budget.   

Lynn said that in general we aren’t spending all the money we have budgeted, primarily in the area of 
member services.  Jim Coke mentioned that we would be spending money on the ABTA teacher 
certification program at the SF nationals.  Max Schireson said the Growth Committee could use more 
volunteers to spend its budgeted money. Anthony Toto asked if money was available for the Adopt-a-
school program that had been described in the monthly Bulletins. It is apparently an ACBL program, not a 
D21 program.  Anthony volunteered to join the Growth Committee. Jackie Zayac mentioned two programs, 
a gifted teachers conference, and special games for beginners at the SF NABC, for which 94 players had 
signed up already. 

7A.  General budget. Addressing the general budget, Stu had questions about specific line items, including 
the cost of auto insurance. Lynn explained that Calvin was not a careful driver of the D21 van.  There had 
been an accident a year ago and more recently there was some cosmetic damage for which Calvin was 
going to get an estimate. Lynn questioned the need for owning a van in the future. Anthony encouraged 
renting a vehicle. In response to Anne Hollngsworth’s question, Lynn pointed out where Goodwill money 
was budgeted. Jim described potential uses of funds for volunteer appreciation like a welcome to the 
Board meeting, an Executive Committee face-to-face meeting, and goodwill, and something for committee 
chairs in Santa Clara. 

Stu asked if there was a budget for the D21 President to attend local tournaments. Lynn said such an item 
needed to be budgeted and wasn’t. Stu said it used to be. Lynn said there is a draft volunteer 
appreciation policy and another draft subsidy for training teachers and directors. Lynn has written up a 
proposal by Max.  Ray said he doesn’t have complete D21 minutes back to when Stu was President. Stu 
remembered the amount being set at $1,000 annually. Jackie Ortiz said the Executive Committee should 
have a dinner.  Jim said that was part of the budget. Anthony said either the D21 President or another 
ExCom member should make a presentation at every sectional. Trulee said the last ExCom dinner was at 
an expensive restaurant. 

7B. Tournament budget. Stu had some specific questions about past tournament expenses and new 
budgeted expenses. Ray displayed the document that had been circulated to the Board in advance of the 
meeting. The TDs aren’t paid for table, but Lynn has to account for it that way.   

Stu questioned an increase in travel expenses.  Anne Wilson explained that she and Brenda used to give 
TDs the complimentary rooms at hotels but switched to giving them to tournament staff.   

Groceries, food, and snacks increased due to coffee coupons for players in Sacramento. Lynn said it is 
included on the food line. Brenda said the snack candy is also included.  D21 isn’t charged if the coupons 
aren’t used. 

Anne H. mentioned the anticipated coffee costs for the NABC. 

Discounts, free plays, and fill-ins are not listed as prizes due to how the ACBL TDs account for them. Trulee 
asked why free plays were given out.  Brenda said it was to encourage volunteers. 

Ray thanked Stu for his meticulous review of the budget, saying that the rest of us could also feel diligent 
about having reviewed the budget before voting on it. 

Anne H had a question about the budgets for GNTs and NAPs. The amounts have been fairly constant, but 
we have added to NAPs because there are now four flights and we give stipends to third place. 

Lynn said the 2026-2027 NAP qualifying events haven’t been budgeted because they haven’t been 
scheduled.  She also said it is a small number. There was a discussion about when to hold the qualifiers for 



 

December 2025 Page 3 of 3 
 

2026-2027.  Jim asked Jackie Z to see about obtaining an ACBL rule change for 2026. He said he’d send 
her an email with his proposal. 

Ray explained that the budget as presented by the Finance Committee with two Board members on it is 
effectively a seconded motion. 

**MOTION PASSED.  The general budget, which includes the tournament budget, was approved as written 
without opposition. 

Jim announced that he had nominated Lynn Bartz and Don Garka to the National Goodwill Committee. 

The meeting, lasting under an hour, was adjourned. 


